
Board Meeting   
Agenda (open)    
8.00 a.m. Tuesday 27 August 2024  
Limelight Room, Level 3 Te Pokapū Aotea Centre, 50 Mayoral Drive, Auckland 

 

  
 

1 S7(2)(f)(i),(h),(i) LGOIMA 1987 
 

Item Subject Action Trust/Co. Start Time Duration 

CONFIDENTIAL MEETING OPEN  

PROCEDURAL  

1 Agenda and Apologies  To Note T & C 8.00 a.m.  30 mins 

2 Confidential Minutes 31 July 2024 and Action 
Tracker, Vicki Salmon 

To Approve T & C 

3 Board Agenda Discussion, Vicki Salmon To Discuss T & C 

CE CONFIDENTIAL UPDATE  

4 CE Confidential Update1, Nick Hill To Note T & C 8.30 a.m. 1 hour 

30 mins 

BREAK 10.00 a.m. 30 mins 

ANNUAL REPORTS 

5 Annual Reports (Trust and Company) for Year 
Ended 30 June 20241, Justine White 

To Approve  T & C 10.30 a.m. 30 mins 

CONFIDENTIAL MEETING CLOSED AND PUBLIC MEETING OPEN 

PROCEDURAL 

6 Register of Directors’ Interests and Rolling 12-
Month Board Work Programme, Vicki Salmon 

To Note T & C 11.00 a.m. 5 mins 

7 Public Minutes 31 July 2024, Vicki Salmon To Approve T & C 

CE REPORT AND PERFORMANCE REPORTS 

8 CE Report, Nick Hill  

1. Financial Performance Report  
2. Current Operational Risks (RC) 
3. CRM Board Update (RC) 
4. Capital Programme Update (RC) 

To Note T & C 11.05 a.m. 15 mins 

APPROVAL AND NOTING PAPERS 

9 Economic Insights – Auckland Economic 
Monitor and State of the City Report, Pam Ford 

To Note C 11.20 a.m. 40 mins 

10 Group Shared Services Update, Richard Jarrett To Note T & C 

PUBLIC MEETING CLOSED AND CONFIDENTIAL MEETING OPEN 

LUNCH 12.00 p.m. 30 mins 



Board Meeting   
Agenda (open)    

 

 
 

 
2 S7(2)(f)(i),(h),(i) LGOIMA 1987 
3 S7(2)(f)(i),(h) LGOIMA 1987 
4 S7(2)(a),(d),(f)(i) LGOIMA 1987 
 

Item Subject Action Trust/Co. Start Time Duration 

BOARD ONLY TIME 

11 Remuneration Committee Update, Vicki Salmon 
(12 August 2024) 

To Discuss  T & C 12.30 p.m. 10 mins 

APPROVAL PAPERS AND BOARD COMMITTEE UPDATES 

12 Board Committee Updates 
 

• Capital Projects Committee, Vicki 
Salmon (14 August 2024) 
 

• Māori Engagement Committee, 
Hinurewa Te Hau (15 August 2024) 
 

• Risk and Finance Committee, Carol 
Cheng, (20 August 2024) 

To Discuss T 12.40 p.m.  1 hour 

20 mins 

13 MOTAT Board Director Appointments2, Vincent 
Lipanovich 

To Approve T 

14 Sale of Auckland Film Studios2, Justine White 
and Malcolm Lawry  

To Approve C 

15 Auckland Stadiums2, Nick Hill and James 
Parkinson 

1. Western Springs Stadium EOI 
 

2. Waikaraka Park  
 

3. North Harbour Stadium Local Board’s 
Working Group Presentation to Council 

 
 
 
To Note 
 
To Approve 
 
To Note 

T 

COMMITTEE RECOMMENDED, COMPLIANCE, AND NOTING PAPERS 

16 Capital Programme Business Cases3, Justine 
White 

1. Go Media Stadium, West Stand Toilets 
Renewal   

 
2. Go Media Stadium, Paving Renewal 

To Approve T & C 2.00 p.m. 30 mins 

17 Q4 Performance Report3, Nick Hill and Justine 
White 

To Approve T & C  

18 Health and Safety Report4, Lynn Johnson and 
Priyanka Victor 

To Note T & C 

 Close of Meeting   2.30 p.m.  



Board Meeting   
Agenda (open)    

 
 
Local Government Official Information and Meetings Act 1987 Section 7(2) 
 
Subject to sections 6, 8, and 17, this section applies if, and only if, the withholding of the 
information is necessary to— 
 
(a) protect the privacy of natural persons, including that of deceased natural persons; or 
 
(b)  protect information where the making available of the information— 
 

(i) would disclose a trade secret; or 
 

(ii) would be likely unreasonably to prejudice the commercial position of the person 
who supplied or who is the subject of the information; or 

 
(ba) in the case only of an application for a resource consent, or water conservation order, 

or a requirement for a designation or heritage order, under the Resource 
Management Act 1991, to avoid serious offence to tikanga Maori, or to avoid the 
disclosure of the location of waahi tapu; or 

 
(c)  protect information which is subject to an obligation of confidence or which any 

person has been or could be compelled to provide under the authority of any 
enactment, where the making available of the information— 

 
(i) would be likely to prejudice the supply of similar information, or 

information from the same source, and it is in the public 
interest that such information should continue to be supplied; 
or 

 
(ii) would be likely otherwise to damage the public interest; or 

 
(d)  avoid prejudice to measures protecting the health or safety of members of the public; 

or 
 
(e)  avoid prejudice to measures that prevent or mitigate material loss to members of the 

public; or 
 
(f)  maintain the effective conduct of public affairs through— 
 

(i) the free and frank expression of opinions by or between or to members or 
officers or employees of any local authority, or any persons to whom section 
2(5) applies, in the course of their duty; or 

 
(ii) the protection of such members, officers, employees, and persons from 

improper pressure or harassment; or 
 
(g)  maintain legal professional privilege; or 
 
(h)  enable any local authority holding the information to carry out, without prejudice or 

disadvantage, commercial activities; or 
 
(i)  enable any local authority holding the information to carry on, without prejudice or 

disadvantage, negotiations (including commercial and industrial negotiations); or 
 
(j)  prevent the disclosure or use of official information for improper gain or improper 

advantage. 
 



 

  

August 2024 
 

 
 ‘  
 

Name Position Directorships/Trusteeships Other Interests Possible Conflicts 

Vicki Salmon  Chair  ● Coopers Creek Vineyard Ltd (Director and 
Shareholder) 

● Salmon and Partners Ltd (Director and 
Shareholder) 

● Remuera Golf Club (President) 

 ● Prior to Vicki Salmon’s appointment as Chair of 
Tātaki Auckland Unlimited, Vicki was a member 
of the Eden Park Trust Board (EPTB). Vicki 
resigned as a member of the EPTB on 27 March 
2023 and no longer has any interest in EPTB or 
the Eden Park organisation.  

Jennah Wootten Deputy Chair ● Perpetual Guardian Holdings Limited (Director) 
● Perpetual Trust Limited (Director) 
● Generate Global (Director and Shareholder) 

● Aktive – Auckland Sports & Recreation 
(CEO) 

 

Alastair Carruthers Non-Executive Director ● Homeland NZ Enterprises Ltd (Director and 
Shareholder) 

● Homeland NZ Trading Ltd (Director and 
Shareholder) 

● Carruthers Consulting Ltd (Director and 
Shareholder) 

● Television New Zealand Ltd (Chair) 
● NZ Film Commission (Chair)  
● Cornwall Park Trust Board (Trustee) 
● Ringa Hora Services – Workforce Development 

Council (Director)Auckland Regional Amenities 
Funding Board (Board Member) 

● Auckland War Memorial Museum Trust Board 
(Trustee) 

 ● The ARAFB provides operating funding to some 
entities who occupy and perform in AU facilities. 

● Homeland hosts events for Auckland Convention 
Bureau and other Tātaki Auckland Unlimited 
funded entities from time to time.   

Carol Cheng Non-Executive Director ● Teaching Council New Zealand (Governing 
Council Member) 

● Hong Consulting Limited (Director and 
Shareholder) 

● CYWE Trustee Limited (Director and 
Shareholder) 

● Eastland Property Services Limited (Shareholder) 
● Auckland International Airport Limited 

(Shareholder) 
● Spark New Zealand Limited (Shareholder) 
● Comvita Limited (Shareholder) 
● SkyCity Entertainment Group Limited 

(Shareholder) 
● Microgem International Plc (Shareholder)  
● The Asia New Zealand Foundation Te Whītau 

Tūhono (Trustee) 

 ● Asia New Zealand Foundation provided 
sponsorship for Auckland Culture Festivals  

● Asia New Zealand Foundation provided 
sponsorship for Guo Pei Exhibition at the 
Auckland Art Gallery. 

 

Hinurewa Te Hau (Hinu) Non-Executive Director ● Tamaki Makaurau Matariki Festival Trust (trading 
as Matariki Cultural Foundation) (Trustee) 

● Matariki Global Holdings Limited (Director) 

● Chair of WOMEX (World Music Expo) 
Pan Indigenous Network representing 
36 indigenous nations globally 

 



 

  

● Taamaki Records Limited (Director) 
● Otamatea Pioneer & Kauri Museum Board (Chair) 
● Ringa Hora Services – Workforce Development 

Council (Director) 

Jen Rolfe  Non-Executive Director ● Rainger & Rolfe (Director) 
● Barbara Andrew Family Trust (Trustee) 
● Thomas Family Trust (Trustee) 
● Thomas Number 2 Family Trust (Trustee) 

 

● New Zealand Marketing Association 
(Member) 
 

● Prior to Jen Rolfe’s appointment to the Tātaki 
Auckland Unlimited (formerly RFA) Board, 
Rainger & Rolfe provided some marketing 
services to RFA. 

● Rainger & Rolfe is providing marketing services to 
Watercare.  

● Rainger & Rolfe is providing marketing services to 
Martin Jenkins (occasional Tātaki Auckland 
Unlimited consultant).  

Graeme Stephens  ● New Zealand Hotel Holdings (Director) 
● Kamari Consulting Limited (Director and 

Shareholder) 
● SkyCity Entertainment Group (Shareholder)) 

  

Dan Te Whenua Walker Non-Executive Director ● New Zealand Māori Tourism Society (Deputy 
Chair) 

● Korowai Hikuroa Consulting Limited (Director and 
Shareholder) 

● Ringa Hora Services – Workforce Development 
Council (Director) 

● Pou Tuarā o Te Rūnanga o Ngāti Ruanui Trust 
(Shareholder)  

● Ngati Ruanui Tahua Limited (Shareholder) 
● Ngati Ruanui Fishing Limited (Shareholder) 
● Te Topuni Ngarahu General Partner Limited 

(Shareholder) 
● Māori Creative Foundation (Trustee) 
● Meremere Marae Charitable Trust (Trustee) 
● Hikuroa Whanaungatanga Charitable Trust 

(Trustee) 
● Stanmore Bay Primary School (Chair) 
● Massey University Executive Education (Advisory 

Board Member) 
● University of Auckland Māori Alumni (Trustee and 

Chair of Executive Committee) 
● Sarcoma Foundation NZ (Board member) 
● Child Cancer Foundation (Board member) 
● Ronald McDonald House (Board member) 

 
 

 

 



August 2024 

 

  

 

 

Month Shareholder Accountability Operations & 
Business Planning 

Strategy and Business Focus Board and Committee Dates 

Jul-24 • SOI FY 25 

• TAU End of Year Financial 
Reporting Packs 

• Q4 Risk Report to Council 

• Climate Related Disclosures 

• CEO Report 

• H&S Report 

• Three Year Plan 

• Integrated Cultural Organisations 

 

• Risk and Finance Committee – 17 July 

• Board Meeting – 31 July 

Aug-24 • Q4 Performance Report 

• TAUL and TAUT Annual Report 

• Financial reporting for the year 
ended 30 June 2024 

• Climate Related Disclosures  
 

• CEO Report 

• H&S Report 

 • Capital Projects Committee – 14 August 

• Māori Engagement Committee – 15 August 

• Risk and Finance Committee – 21 August (FY24 
Statements) 

• Board Meeting – 27 August 

Sep-24  • CEO Report 

• H&S Report 

  

Oct-24 • Public Board meeting - performance 
against SOI targets for Year Ended 
30 June 2024 

• Q1 Performance Report 

• CEO Report 

• H&S Report 

 

• Workshop: Duplication of Activity 
with Council Group 

 

 

• Capital Projects Committee – 15 Oct 

• Remuneration Committee – 17 Oct 

• Board Meeting – 30 Oct (Public Board Meeting) 

Nov-24 • Q1 Risk Report to Council • CEO Report 

• H&S Report 
 

• Workshop: National Visitor Levy 

 

 

• Risk and Finance Committee – 13 Nov 

• Māori Engagement Committee – 21 Nov 

Dec-24  • CEO Report 

• H&S Report 

 

 • Board Meeting – 3 Dec 

 
 
 
 
 
 



August 2024 

 

  

 

Month Shareholder Accountability Operations & 
Business Planning 

Strategy and Business Focus Board and Committee Dates 

Jan-25 • Letter of Expectation 

• Financial reporting for the ½ Year 
ended 31 December 2024 

• Q2 Risk Report 

• CEO Report 

• H&S Report 

 • Remuneration Committee – TBC 

• Risk and Finance Committee – TBC (½Y 
Accounts) 

• Board Meeting – 29 Jan (½Y Acts)  

Feb-25 • Q2 Performance Report  

 

• CEO Report 

• H&S Report 

• Board Strategy Session  

• Workshop: New Zealand Maritime 
Museum Masterplan 

 
 

• Māori Engagement Committee – TBC 

• Capital Projects Committee – TBC  

• Board Meeting – TBC  

Mar-25 • 2025 – 27 Statement of Intent 
Amendments 

• Draft 2025 -2028 Statement of 
Intent 

 

• CEO Report 

• H&S Report 

 • Risk and Finance Committee – TBC 

• Capital Projects Committee – TBC 

• Board Meeting – 26 March 
 

Apr-25 • Q3 Risk Report to Council 

• Q3 Performance Report  

 

• CEO Report 

• H&S Report 

• Board Evaluation 
(biennial – next due: 
2026) 

• Workshop: Auckland Art Gallery Toi o 
Tāmaki Strategy 

 

 

• Capital Projects Committee – TBC 

• Board Meeting – 30 April 

May-25  • CEO Report 

• H&S Report 

• Annual insurance 
renewal 

• Auditor engagement 
and fees  

 • Risk and Finance Committee – TBC 

• Māori Engagement Committee – TBC 

• Board Meeting – TBC 

 

Jun-25 • Public Board meeting - shareholder 
feedback on SOI 

• CEO Report 

• H&S Report 

 • Remuneration Committee – TBC 

• Capital Projects Committee – TBC 

• Board Meeting – TBC (Public Board Meeting) 

 
 











































S6(c) S7(2)(f)(i),(h) LGOIMA 1987



S6(c) S7(2)(f)(i),(h) LGOIMA 1987



S7(2)(f)(i)LGOIMA 1987





Page 1 
 

  Monthly Operating Performance 

                                                     
  

 

 Key commentary 
The “Adjusted Budget” includes approved budget carry forwards, where elements of 
the budget from FY24 which were not spent in the year and Auckland Council has 
approved this unspent budget being transferred to FY25. 

A. Net Direct Expenditure is on budget with a small favourable expenditure offsetting 
a small unfavourable revenue. 

B. TAU overall has had a strong performance in key revenue areas, however the 
anticipated growth in Grants, Donation and Sponsorships is has been slower than 
planned (offset by the lower expenditure in Grants, contributions and sponsorship), 
as well as a delay of Other Revenue at Stadiums. 

C. Costs are almost to budget, employee benefits are adverse due largely to 
additional casual staff being needed for revenue generating events. 

D. Other expenditure includes costs of sales for events and visitation, occupancy and 
utilities as well as repairs and maintenance costs to support the venues of Tātaki. 

E. Capital programmes have had a slower than anticipated, this however is largely a 
timing issue that will be  rectified as we progress the year and through budget 
phasing review which will be undertaken in September. The Art Gallery restoration 
programme scaffolding on the Wellesley Street wing has been removed which signals 
the completion of Separable Portion 1 and a major milestone in the project. The 
overall project completion date is scheduled for August 2025.  

 



 
 

Report to the Board, Tātaki Auckland Unlimited Page 1 
 

  
 
 

 

Key Findings – Auckland Economic Monitor and 
State of the City 2024 
Report to the Board of Tātaki Auckland Unlimited  
 
 
 
 
Meeting date  27 August 2024 
Author   John Lavery, Head of Economic Transformation 
Approved by Nick Hill, CE 
Purpose of paper  
Company and/or Trust paper 

For Noting and Feedback 
Company 

  
Proposed resolution  That the Board: 

 
1. Note the findings within the reports and provide 

feedback. 
 
 
 
 
To provide the board with an overview of the main findings of two recent reports on 
Auckland’s performance, the Auckland Economic Monitor and State of the City: 
Benchmarking Tamaki Makaurau 2024. These reports were led and supported by the 
Tātaki Auckland Unlimited Economic Development rōpū. The report will be supplemented by 
a short presentation at the 27 August Board meeting.  
 
 
 
 
Providing insights into Auckland’s performance as a city, particularly across areas of focus 
for TAU, is a priority for TAU.  Through insights we can support a more informed conversation 
internally, across the Council group, with government, industry and other partners about the 
future direction of Auckland, build the case for intervention, identify priority areas to inform 
the work programme of TAU and our partners.  
 
Auckland Economic Monitor 
 
TAU launched the Auckland Economic Monitor in July. It presents a range of data and 
analysis on Auckland’s economic performance between 2019 and 2024.  Delivered with 
support from PwC and supported by the Auckland Council Chief Economist Unit, the report 
is a singular source of information on Auckland’s economy with a particular focus on core 
areas of priority for TAU Economic Development rōpū including industry, talent, international 
trade and investment. The Economic Monitor looks at Auckland’s performance over time and 
as compared to the rest of New Zealand. Headline findings include: 

BACKGROUND 
 

PURPOSE 
 



 
 

Report to the Board, Tātaki Auckland Unlimited Page 2 
 

 
• Despite enduring longer and more frequent lockdowns Auckland’s economy grew 10 

per cent from 2019 to 2023, matching the national average. However, in 2023 
Auckland’s GDP growth was double the rest of New Zealand. 

• Growth has been driven by Auckland’s high value service sectors, including our 
Tech, Creative Digital, Professional and Financial services sectors which account for 
32% of GDP and 36% of jobs. 

• Our workforce is more skilled than before COVID, with 53% of jobs classified as 
‘skilled’ or ‘highly skilled’ 

• There a 10% increase in the number of registered businesses between 2019 and 
2023, showing an embedded spirit of entrepreneurship 

• Māori and Pacific peoples are significant contributors to natural population growth, 
accounting for nearly half of births (yet 30% pf population) over the last 5 years. 
 

More recent data pointed to the challenging climate, with GDP growth estimated to have 
slowed to 0.5 per cent and productivity growth flatlining in 2024. 
 
The Economic Monitor information is on a microsite and the report is available as a 
downloadable document. 
 
State of the City: Benchmarking Tamaki Makaurau 2024 
 
In August, the State of the City 2024 report was released. Led by the Committee for Auckland, 
TAU are a partner alongside Deloitte, the Auckland Policy Office and Koi Tu: The Centre for 
Informed Futures.  This is the second year of the report, which compares Auckland’s 
performance across 10 pillars against nine peer cities, complementing the domestic analysis 
of the Auckland Economic Monitor.  Headline findings include: 
 

• Auckland is facing an incomplete rebound and fragile recovery – slower than all of 
our peers. 

• In comparison to 2023, across the ten pillars measured, Auckland has seen increases 
in three pillars - Opportunity, Place & Resilience. However, there are decreases in 
four - Connectivity; Experience; Prosperity; Sustainability. 

 
 



 
 

Report to the Board, Tātaki Auckland Unlimited Page 3 
 

• Underperformance in Innovation was identified in 2023 and despite some shifts in 
2024, it continues to be a low scoring pillar. 

• Peer cities are outperforming Auckland in attracting talent and international 
perceptions of Auckland have decreased, with Auckland less favourably recognised 
than it was in 2014.  

• Auckland faces tough competition with other cities drawing in talent and retaining their 
workforce, as well as emerging as major innovation and tech hubs. This makes 
Auckland's economic vitality less impressive. Skill gaps, reduced productivity, and 
affordability issues stand out in 2024, leading to a dip in the city's Prosperity. 
 

The report also states that if Auckland is to perform better, it needs:   
 

• To further build up Auckland’s competitive position in high value sectors 
• Conscientious and collaborative leadership about the city’s direction, appeal, 

and identity with the development of Auckland’s business and innovation brand if the 
city wants to attract investment and talent 

• Greater international connections; Increase recognition of place; increased role for 
anchor organisations and the private sector. 
 

The insights from these combined reports provide a comprehensive view of Auckland’s 
performance across several areas, highlighting strengths, validating many known challenges 
and presenting others which have emerged since COVID and are influenced by the current 
economic climate and lack of progress.   
 
The findings have consolidated, the TAU work programme over the next three years, notably: 
 

1. Focus on high value and competitive industries through supporting the growth of 
the technology, creative, screen and climate sectors and the establishment of a 
creative innovation precinct in Henderson, called Te Puna. 

2. Uplift innovation performance through working with partners in the system, notably, 
the Outset Ventures, Newmarket Innovation Precinct, Uniservices, MedtechiQ, 
Startup Aotearoa, Callaghan Innovation and others; ongoing support for ecosystem 
growth through the GridAKL network; the Māori Innovation Hubs programme. 

3. Improved international connections through targeted engagement and investment 
attraction programme including staging an international investment summit. 

 
 
 
Not applicable. Reports are budgeted, and partners contribute to the cost. 
 
 
 
Presenting insights on city performance comes with risk, especially where areas outside 
TAU’s remit, and media interest.  This has been managed through the partnership approach, 
robust stakeholder engagement and communications planning. 
 
 
 
Not applicable 
 
 
 
 

R ISK 
 

FINANCIAL 
 

LEGAL 
 



 
 

Report to the Board, Tātaki Auckland Unlimited Page 4 
 

 
 
 
Both reports provide commentary on Auckland’s climate performance.  Notably, the State of 
the City report states that having previously been praised for sustainability, Auckland is now 
falling behind in reducing emissions and attracting green investments, resulting in a lower 
Sustainability ranking in 2024. 
 
 
 
The Auckland Economic Monitor highlights the role of Te Ōhanga Māori – the Māori economy 
– in Auckland and highlights areas of focus to support improved Māori outcomes including 
supporting upskilling, access to capital and diversification.  The State of the City report 
highlights Auckland’s status as having one of the largest indigenous urban populations and 
the need to address inequities faced by Māori. 
 
 
 
 
Both reports were delivered with partners of the Economic Development rōpū, leveraging 
marketing and media reach. Both demonstrated TAU subject matter expertise and 
leadership. Since launch there has been significant interest in report findings from central 
government, Auckland businesses the university sector. 
 
 

 
It is recommended that the Board: 
 

 
1. Note the findings within the reports and provide feedback 

 
 

Written by: Reviewed by: Approved by:  
 

 

John Lavery 
Head of Economic 
Transformation  

 

 
 
Pamela Ford 
Director, Economic 
Development 

 
Nick Hill 
CE 

 
 
 
 

 

ATTACHMENT SCHEDULE  

Attachment 1 Auckland Economic Monitor 2024 (RC) 

Attachment 2 State of the City: Benchmarking Tamaki Makaurau 2024 (RC) 
 

RECOMMENDATION 
 

MĀORI  OUTCOMES 
 

CLIMATE CHANGE AND SUSTAINABILITY 
 

MARKETING,  COMMS,  GROWTH & LEVERAGE  


	1 Board 27 August 2024 - Agenda (3)
	6 Board 27 August 2024 - Register of Interests
	6.1 Board 27 August 2024 - 12 Month Rolling Calendar
	7 Board 27 August 2024 - 31 July 2024 Public Minutes
	8 Board 27 August 2024 - CE report_Redacted
	8.1 Board 27 August 2024 - Financial Performance Report
	9 Board 27 August 2024 - Economic Insights
	PURPOSE
	BACKGROUND
	FINANCIAL
	RISK
	LEGAL
	CLIMATE CHANGE AND SUSTAINABILITY
	MĀORI OUTCOMES
	MARKETING, COMMS, GROWTH & LEVERAGE
	RECOMMENDATION

	10 Board 27 August 2024 - Group Shared Services Update
	PURPOSE
	BACKGROUND
	FINANCIAL
	Recommendation
	RISK
	LEGAL
	CLIMATE CHANGE AND SUSTAINABILITY
	MĀORI OUTCOMES
	MARKETING, COMMS, GROWTH & LEVERAGE
	RECOMMENDATION

	10.1 Board 27 August 2024 - Group Shared Services Update - Attachment 1
	Consistent Reporting: Dashboard Example (Mock Data)




